
 
General Business                                   Lower Saucon Township                                              March 17, 2010 
& Developer                                                 Council Agenda                                                            7:00 p.m. 
 
 
I. OPENING 
 A. Call to Order 
 B. Roll Call 
 C. Pledge of Allegiance 
 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 
   
II. PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURE 
 
III. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS   

A. Resolution #40-2010 – Commending Heather Logan for Achieving the Girl Scout Gold Award 
  
IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

 
V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. EAC Recommendations Regarding Geothermal Heating Systems 
B. Resolution #41-2010 – Approval of Credit Card Contract with Official Payments Corporation 
C. Review of Draft Special Meeting Agenda and Authorization to Advertise 
D. Approval of Alternative Trail Surfacing for Polk Valley Park Connector Trail 
E. PHMC Notification of the April 6, 2010 Meeting on the Heller Homestead National Register Nomination 
 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. Approval of February 17, 2010 Minutes  
B. Approval of February 2010 Financial Reports 
     

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
VIII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   
 A. Township Manager 
 B. Council/Jr. Council Member 
 C. Solicitor 
 D. Engineer 
 E. Planner  
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Next Planning Commission Meeting:  March 18, 2010 
Next Council Meeting: April 7, 2010 

Next Park & Rec Meeting:  April 12, 2010 
Next EAC Meeting: April 13, 2010 

Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  April 19, 2010 
 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



 
General Business                                           Lower Saucon Township                                           March 17, 2010 
& Developer                                                         Council Minutes                                                         7:00 P.M. 
 
 
I. OPENING 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 
was called to order on Wednesday, March 17, 2010 at 7:00 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, 
Bethlehem, PA, with Mr. Glenn Kern, Council President, presiding. 

   
 ROLL CALL:  Present – Glenn Kern, President; Tom Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Ron 

Horiszny, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant Township 
Manager; Brien Kocher, Township Engineer; Linc Treadwell, Township Solicitor; Kevin Kochanski, 
Township Planner.  Absent:  Sandra Yerger, Council Member and Kimberly Kelly, Jr. Council member 

  
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
 
Mr. Kern said Council did meet in Executive Session just prior to the opening of this meeting to 
discuss several items.  The first was the Dravecz property which was property acquisition.  The 
second was the Petrie property appraisal.  Based on that may we have a motion? 

 
 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval to send a letter from the Township to the Petrie’s. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 
 Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions or comments?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 

 
Mr. Kern said the third item we discussed in Executive Session was the Mease property.  Based on 
that, may we have a motion to authorize Carroll Engineering to complete the surveying work in 
the Northampton County portion of that parcel in the amount of $896.00? 
 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to authorize Carroll Engineering to complete the surveying work for the 

Mease property in Northampton County. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 
 Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions or comments?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 

 
Mr. Kern said the fourth item talked about in Executive Session was Tammy Kipp litigation.  
The final item was the Keifer litigation. 
 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Mr. Kern said for citizen agenda items – Council operates under Robert’s Rules.  What that means is during 

agenda items, Council will talk amongst themselves and amongst staff and the interested parties.  At the 
conclusion of that, we open it up to the public for public comment.  There is an opportunity for non-agenda 
items at the end of the meeting to discuss whatever your business might be.  We do have a microphone and 
there are microphones up at the table.  There is a sign-in sheet in the back of the room.  Please print your 
name and address and email address.  It is very helpful in transcribing the minutes.  For those who want to 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 2 of 16 

receive emailed agendas, please give your email address to Leslie or Jack or call the Township office.  
Please state your name and address.  If you can’t hear, please let us know.  You can check the minutes on 
the website, which is lowersaucontownship.org.   

 
IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None 
 
V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. EAC RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING GEOTHERMAL HEATING SYSTEMS 
 
Mr. Kern said the EAC would like to recommend a review by the consultants and staff of our current 
ordinances regarding geothermal heating systems with primary attention to protection of the 
environment but to still allow for effective use of these systems.  If Council would like to proceed with 
this review, a scope of cost should be provided by the consultants. 
 
Mr. Kochanski said there has been some discussion at the EAC meetings regarding the current 
regulations with regards to geothermal systems and some concerns that some of the regulations that 
may exist are outdated and no longer applicable.  There have been discussions from outside 
contractors regarding the systems and there’s a thought that the ordinance could use some revisions 
with some of the regulations.  The recommendation in front of you is from the EAC and it is to 
investigate some of those issues regarding setbacks, pipe bedding material, use of natural ponds, 
pollutant danger from vertical systems especially in the watershed protection area, toxicity of the poly 
glycol and the groundwater issues with the poly glycol fluids inside the geothermal systems, the 
vertical and open type systems for geothermal.  Mr. Horiszny said isn’t that propylene glycol instead 
of poly glycol?  Mr. Kochanski said he doesn’t know.  One of the contractors came in and said it was 
poly.  If there is another type of fluid that is used in the geothermal systems, he’s not aware of that.   
He doesn’t know if it was just a short name, but it’s a possibility.   
 
Mr. Maxfield said from the EAC’s standpoint, these were all issues that they discussed.  These were 
not all issues that we thought, as a majority, should be changed, but we thought they should at least be 
looked into.  Some of these may be reinforced in the ordinances we have in the books already.  Some 
of them were recommendations by the consultants, like the setbacks and the pipe bedding material. 
 
Mr. Kern said what would the next step be in the process?  Mr. Cahalan said have the consultants look 
into these areas, and come back with some recommendations for Council’s consideration.  
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to have the consultants look into these areas and come back with some 
recommendations for Council’s consideration. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 
 Mrs. deLeon asked if our consultants were familiar with the regulations or do we have to hire other 

consultants?  Mr. Cahalan said we can do that with our in-house consultants.  Mr. Kocher said they 
should be able to do that and if they can’t, then they will come back to Council.  Mrs. deLeon 
asked how may geothermal units do we have installed in the Township?  Mr. Cahalan said he 
thinks one, two at the most.  Mr. Kochanski said a handful at the most.  Mr. Maxfield said there 
were a couple installed years ago.  Some have been around for quite some time.  Mrs. deLeon said 
we may need to look at this if we are not on the right track.  There were concerns from the EAC as 
well as the independent contractor who came out.  The regulations are such that they actually 
prohibit, so the EAC wanted to take a look at it to make sure it wasn’t something that we were 
promoting, but restricting from our ordinances.  Mrs. deLeon said when did we approve this?  Mr. 
Kern said six or seven years ago.  Mrs. deLeon said she knows she had questions and wasn’t sure 
about it.  Mr. Cahalan said we also have interest in this because the Township is investigating 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 3 of 16 

whether geothermal will work for the Township complex.  We are investigating funding for 
geothermal heating and cooling and we would like to come back; and hopefully this new 
information will help us also.  Mr. Maxfield said at least two of the systems that have been 
approved have been in the watershed protection area so there are probably going to be different 
restrictions for that area. 
 

B. RESOLUTION #41-2010 – APPROVAL OF CARE CREDIT CONTRACT WITH OFFICAL 
PAYMENTS CORPORATION 
 
Mr. Kern said the Township would like to provide the ability for residents to use credit cards to pay 
for items (zoning books, permits, etc.) and also provide for payment of taxes.  In order to provide 
this service the Township needs to enter into a contract with a service provider.  The Director of 
Finance has reviewed various firms that offer this and is recommending using the Official 
Payments Corporation.  The Solicitor has reviewed the contract documents and a resolution has 
been prepared in order to execute the contract. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said they are trying to make it easier and update some of the processes that residents 
can follow to make payments on their real estate taxes.  What they would like to do to enable a 
resident to use a credit card, to make the payment online, over the phone, or in person at the 
Township office.  The first step, although it mentions zoning books and permits, they’d like to 
implement it strictly for real estate payments only, and then at some point, in the future, to enlarge 
that to payments for zoning books and permits and then also in the police department for payments 
of parking and traffic citations.  What they would need with this is simply the hardware and 
software hooked up to a terminal at one of our customer service windows and then people can 
come up and make the payment in person.  They can go to our Township website. There would be 
a link there which would say “Make Payments” and that would link them into a page where they 
could choose to make it by credit card, by telephone or checking account debit card.  It’s a pretty 
simple process and is being used in Bethlehem Township online.  There are some charges which 
are explained to the residents when they do this.  There are fees that they make to the Official 
Payments site for the service.  We believe it would make the payment of the real estate taxes and 
these other items a little bit easier for people to do.  There is a long agreement and the Solicitor has 
looked through that with Cathy Gorman.  We believe everything is in order for us to move forward.  
Mr. Horiszny said the way he read that, it doesn’t cost the Township anything?  Mr. Cahalan said 
the payment is made by the customer who is using the service.  Attorney Treadwell said he had a 
lot of questions about the whole idea and Cathy answered all of them, so he doesn’t have a 
problem.  Mr. Kern said normally with a credit card service with a normal business, the business 
absorbs those costs.  Mr. Maxfield said it must cost us something to install the hardware?  Mr. 
Cahalan said that’s pretty simple, it’s a card swipe type of thing on the PC.  They can do it over 
their own phone and online it would just go through on a link.  Mr. Kern said what are the fees if a 
resident wants to use it?  Mr. Cahalan said it’s based on the amount of payment they are making.  
It’s probably in the neighborhood of $10 for most of the payments.  There is a convenience fee and 
it’s 3%.  That’s the one based on the amount of payments you are making.  Mr. Kern said it’s not a 
$10 fee? Mr. Cahalan said no, it would be more if the payment is larger.  Most of them are in the 
range of a $10 fee.  Mr. Kern said if there is a 3% fee like most credit card companies do, from a 
marketing standpoint, it might not be a bad idea to raise those fees 3% and then make the credit 
card free.  Mr. Cahalan said if you use a debit card, there is a fee for that, and in some of those 
areas, the municipalities do pay for that fee.  Then there’s no charge to them at all.  Mrs. deLeon 
said she wouldn’t support that.  If a resident wants to do it, why should the other people have to 
pay?  Mr. Kern said personally he would not use the service once he saw there was a fee involved.  
Mr. Horiszny said he would not use it either, but a lot of people just go ahead and would use it.  
Mr. Cahalan said they would need approval of Resolution #41-2010. 

 
 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 4 of 16 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT AGREEMENT WITH OFFICIAL 
PAYMENTS TO PERMIT THE PROCESSING OF CREDIT CARD TRANSACTIONS 

 
WHEREAS, Lower Saucon Township currently accepts cash or check payments for real estate 
taxes, permits, fees, fines and other miscellaneous items as permitted by the Township fee 
schedule; and  
 
WHEREAS, residents have requested the ability to pay for such taxes, permits, fees, fines, etc. by 
means of a debit or credit card; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Township wishes to provide residents with the ability to pay with means other 
than cash or check; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Township wishes to provide residents with the ability to pay real estate taxes on-
line, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Township desires to amend the fee schedule to reflect any contractual fees 
charged to the Township for returned processing associated with debit or credit card payments will 
be billed to the cardholder; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township further desires to provide this service at the cardholder’s expense and 
not at the expense of the Township residents. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of Lower Saucon Township hereby 
authorizes the Township to enter into an Electronic Transaction Processing Agreement with 
Official Payments Corporation for the purpose of providing the ability to accept debit and credit 
card payments. 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of Resolution #41-2010. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 

C. REVIEW OF DRAFT SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA AND AUTHORIZATION TO 
ADVERTISE 
 
Mr. Kern said staff has prepared a draft agenda for Council’s review for a Special Meeting which 
we are proposing be held on May 5, 2010 at 4 p.m. prior to the regular Council meeting at 7 p.m. 
that evening.  The agenda for this first Special Meeting would focus on presentations and 
discussions regarding proposed updates and revisions to the Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance (SALDO), impervious coverage requirements, and riparian buffers.  If Council approves 
scheduling the Special Meeting, authorization to advertise the meeting is needed. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said it’s a draft and is for Council’s consideration.  We just threw out May 5 as a date.  
That can be moved to another date and we want to make sure the consultants are available to attend 
the meeting since they will be doing most of the presentations on these subjects.  Mrs. deLeon said 
why are we doing this again?  Attorney Treadwell said why we are having these special meetings?  
Mrs. deLeon said we’ve always had special meetings all the years she’s been here, why are we 
including a special agenda?  Attorney Treadwell said it’s on tonight’s agenda for Council to agree 
to schedule it for May 5 or not schedule it for May 5.  The agenda that is in front of you was to let 
you know what topics would be on that evening?  Mrs. deLeon said the last time we discussed this 
there was going to be discussion on whether or not there was going to be public input on this.  
What was the result of that?  Mr. Cahalan said we have a section on the agenda as public comment.  
Attorney Treadwell said the agenda you have in front of you for the May 5th meeting is the same 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 5 of 16 

exact procedure that we use for every regular meeting.  Mrs. deLeon said before she votes for this 
the public comment procedure will be explained like at regular meetings.  The last meeting she 
wasn’t sure if Council was supporting that.  Attorney Treadwell said the way it is proposed in front 
of you, it’s just like tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Maxfield said he doesn’t remember we had a 
discussion about public comment.  It was just that we were trying to come up with a system where 
we kept a topic for the special meeting.  This helps because not only does it let us know, but it lets 
the public know ahead of time what is going to be discussed tonight.  Mrs. deLeon said like 
tonight’s agenda tells the public what is on the agenda.  That’s what she doesn’t understand.  In 
2003, we authorized a resolution.  Mr. Cahalan said the difference on this is there is discussion but 
no votes on any of the topics.  Mrs. deLeon said we don’t have to vote on anything on any night.  
Attorney Treadwell said you don’t have to, and just his personal opinion and if Council doesn’t 
want to do it, you don’t have to.  He thinks that to discuss some of these, for example the 
impervious coverage calculations, when in a meeting which is a regular meeting where  you have a 
lot of citizens, it might get rather tedious for the citizens to sit through an hour and a half of 
discussion about how  you come up with an impervious coverage calculation.  That was the idea to 
try and do it at another time when you have technical discussions.  Just like riparian buffers, there’s 
not a lot of public excitement.  Mrs. deLeon said if she’s understanding this right, under A. 
SALDO, the audience will be asked if there are any questions or comments?  Attorney Treadwell 
said yes.  Mr. Kern said as a result of our last tedious discussion, we agreed there would be no 
votes taken, which makes it more of a discussion so that if there was a hot button issue, the 
audience wouldn’t be threatened thinking there was a vote going to be taken.  Mr. Maxfield said for 
those unfamiliar, maybe the process should be discussed at the beginning of the meeting under 
Public Comment procedures.  Mr. Horiszny said he’s already worried about missing dinner.  Mrs. 
deLeon said she was wondering how they were going to do that.  Are we going to break for dinner?  
Mr. Cahalan said the idea is to end the session and have a break and then come back for the 
meeting.  Mr. Horiszny said in that regard, can we not have the non-agenda item segment.  They 
can wait and do this at a regular meeting if we are targeting to do those three subjects.    He would 
just leave IV. out of it.  Mr. Maxfield said he thinks that’s what they talked about initially, but 
everybody is uncomfortable that people are allowed to speak on any topic they want to whether it’s 
on the agenda or not there should be an opportunity for them to do that.  Mrs. deLeon said every 
meeting has to be treated the same.  That’s the Sunshine Law and you can’t change it.  Mr. 
Maxfield said you may get someone who can’t stick around for the meeting at night.   
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of May 5, 2010 as the Special Meeting and to advertise it for 
May 5, 2010. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?   Mrs. deLeon said leaving the agenda open 
ended is a benefit to Jack and Leslie should something else come up.  They are not bound by 
our approval.  They can delete an item or whatever.  Mr. Maxfield said we still have reports 
also. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 

D. APPROVAL OF ALTERNATIVE TRAIL SURFACING FOR POLK VALLEY 
CONNECTOR TRAIL 
 
Mr. Kern said the Township Planner Boucher & James will review with Council two different 
alternative surface options for the section of the Polk Valley Road Connector Trail for use in front 
of the Herman residence to lessen the impact to the existing trees. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said we are trying to move forward with bringing to you a design plan for the connector 
trail.  We got the permit from DEP and are looking into the bridge designs and discussions with 
Boucher & James.  We discovered there had been some discussion about these choices but we never 
formally brought it to Council’s attention to let you weigh in what your choices are.  Mr. Kochanski 
said that is correct.  Last fall when we were looking at the arborist issue in this area, the horse chestnut 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 6 of 16 

and the spruce in front of the Herman residence, at one point the spruce was going to be removed and 
then the Herman’s decided to keep it and we wanted to look at it as the trail is immediately adjacent to 
those trees, and there’s not a lot of room between the road and those trees doing a special treatment to 
preserve those trees and reduce the impact.  We had done some research and done a couple different 
options of how to do that.  In your packet there is a plan.  The details are the same.  It’s the surface 
treatment on top that varies.  The Gravel-Lok is something that Public Works could end up installing.  
It’s significantly cheaper than the Addaset which is kind of a contractor based application.  It’s a 
poured base versus the Gravel-Lok.  Gravel-Lok you can choose the stone type you would want and 
the Addaset you’re stuck with what the manufacturer has.  With Addaset you would have to go out 
through the bidding process because of the cost.  The Gravel-Lok could be handled internally.  Those 
were the two options and the most conducive to this area with the weather from the different types of 
options we’ve seen.  He’d like to bring that in front of Council to see if you have any comments or 
questions about either system or how it would be installed.   
 
Mr. Maxfield said the Gravel-Lok is just more like a matrix for stone?  Mr. Kochanski said it’s very 
similar in content to where it’s a gravel that is then coated with an acrylic type of polymer that kinds of 
binds the stones, and because it binds the stone in a way, it’s a clean stone and leaves voids similar to 
our pervious concrete or asphalt.  The Addaset is premixed and the Gravel-Lok you lay out your stones 
and literally just pour it on top.  It seeps through and binds the stone that way.  Mr. Horiszny said is it 
pervious or not?  Mr. Kochanski said it is pervious, which is what they were looking at.  It’s a 100 foot 
piece in front of the Herman residence which they worked with the arborist on what the critical root 
zones for those trees were.  It relieves compaction so you don’t have to use the equipment.  Everything 
can be done on existing grade and we can take the normal pervious paving from either end of that up 
to it.  It allows for aeration of the roots in that area so you can relieve the compaction and allows the 
water to infiltrate in.  The impact is significantly less than what you would have with a normal type of 
pavement system.  Mr. Kern said it sounds great.  Did you have a color recommendation?  Mr. 
Kochanski said it depends on the type of stone you are going with.  He doesn’t know what is going to 
be locally available, but it’s probably going to be more of a gray type of stone depending on what we 
end up going with, pervious asphalt or pervious concrete.  For the path, we’d probably want to try to 
get something that matches as close as possible.  Mr. Horiszny said what is the edge restraint?  Mr. 
Kochanski said depending on which side – the street side rail is going to extend way up past and 
provide a barrier for vehicles from the pavement.  Alongside of that, you’d have a pressure treated 2 x 
6 along the edge and on the other side you would have a steel edge, quarter inch or three-sixteenth 
steel to restrain and backfill up to that.  The Herman’s would be able to, or whoever the property 
owner is in the future, would be able to mow that.  Mr. Maxfield said how long will it last before it has 
to be replenished?  Mr. Kochanski said they’ve seen estimates from five to ten years. It’s relatively 
new, so that’s kind of the manufacturer’s recommendation.  If something comes loose, it’s simply 
adding the Gravel-Lok to it.  They do use this in vehicular pathways for cars and driveways.  They say 
you can get a little bit more turn up on the stone, but since it’s pedestrian, you’d probably have a little 
bit less in maintenance.  Mr. Kern asked which one Council liked?  Mr. Maxfield said he would like 
the Gravel-Lok.  It also says environmentally friendly, non-toxic, and ADA compliant.  All those 
things sound good to him. 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to pursue the Gravel-Lok alternative. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?   Mr. Horiszny asked if this was less expensive.  
Mr. Kochanski said it’s about a third of the cost.  Mr. Horiszny said does that include the 
restraint?  Mr. Kochanski said yes, we itemized in the cost estimate kind of the detailed area 
we put together and that would include the restraint.  It was 3/16th inch thick steel edging. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 7 of 16 

E. PHMC NOTIFICATION OF THE APRIL 6, 2010 MEETING ON THE HELLER 
HOMESTEAD NATIONAL REGISTER NOMINATION 

 
Mr. Kern said the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission (PHMC) has notified us that 
the April 6, 2010 meeting of the Pennsylvania Historic Preservation Board in Harrisburg, PA will 
review and discuss the Heller Homestead Nomination to the National Register of Historic Places. 
Mr. Cahalan said we included all the information and the representatives from the conservancy are 
going to attend.  Mrs. deLeon said they are asking for a letter of support from the property owner, so 
she’d ask that the Township put together a letter.  She thinks they want it in advance of the meeting.  
She thanked the Township for the van and said Lenny Szy will be the driver.  He provided his driver’s 
license and his insurance. She asked if anybody on Council or the staff is going to be attending?  Mr. 
Maxfield, Mr. Kern and Mr. Horiszny said they would not be able to go.  Mrs. deLeon said then she 
would like to represent the Township and the conservancy.  Isabelle Bodar is going along also and she 
was very honored to go along as her father did the repairs.   She also sent an email to Freeman, 
Boscola, and Dent’s office, but she needs email addresses for Specter and Casey.  Mr. Cahalan said he 
has those email addresses.  Mrs. deLeon said she’s asking for support letters.  Mr. Cahalan said he 
doesn’t remember a support letter from the Township. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval for the Township to send a support letter, as discussed 

above. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 
VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

  
A. APPROVAL OF MARCH 3, 2010 MINUTES 

 
Mr. Kern said the minutes of the March 3, 2010 Council meeting have been prepared and are ready for 
Council’s review and approval.  

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of the March 3, 2010 minutes. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 3-1 (Mr. Horiszny – No; Mrs. Yerger - Absent) 
 

B. APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 2010 FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

Mr. Kern said the February 2010 Financial Reports have been prepared and are ready for Council’s 
review and approval. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the February 2010 financial reports. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 
VII. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. James McIntyre said he and his wife own the McDonald’s in Hellertown.  He’d like to discuss 
the proposed light at Polk Valley Road. Through his sources in the Hellertown Borough, he thinks 
maybe you think that we are indifferent to the light.  He just wants to make sure that Council 
knows he is against placing the light at Polk Valley Road for several reasons.  Mr. Kern said he 
would like to let Mr. McIntyre know he is in the minority for several reasons, including public 
safety.  Mr. McIntyre said where the light is proposed to go, when that light turns red, no one 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 8 of 16 

would be able to get in or out of his business.  That will stop his business still when the light goes 
red.  Mr. Kern said until the light turns green.  Mr. McIntyre said they are a fast food business and 
the faster you can get in, the faster you can get out.  When you block off his entrance and exit, it 
will increase the time for the patron to get out.  The light will impact that.  He doesn’t understand 
what the purpose of the light is for.  Mr. Kern said it’s an extremely dangerous intersection 
especially for school buses.  It’s a disaster waiting to happen.  It’s a light that has to go in there for 
safety reasons.  There are kids that are at that intersection, in cars, who are new drivers and they are 
trying to come out on a right or left turn and it’s a very, very bad situation, for old and new drivers, 
not to mention the backup of school buses that occurs at that intersection.  Mr. McIntyre said that’s 
why this light is being proposed?  Mr. Kern said it’s the school ingress and egress.  There’s no 
question there is a light needed there.  It’s a danger to school buses and to the kids.  Mr. McIntyre 
said he disagrees.  You are going to spend a minimum of $150,000 to $200,000 for a light.  Mr. 
Kern said he didn’t know the cost.  Mr. McIntyre said why don’t you put a police officer there at 
night?  You are talking five days a week, 200 days a year.  That light will be there 365 days a year.  
Mr. Cahalan said we also have a park at Polk Valley Park that is open seven days a week.  Mr. 
McIntyre said that road is a low use road.  Maybe when the school buses are there, that’s it.  Mr. 
Maxfield said as far as warranting a light, the school is a primary problem there, but he’s had a 
significant problem during the day pulling out of the plaza also.  You can sit and sit and sit and 
wait.  He feels that it is needed there.  Mr. McIntyre said there have only been five reportable 
accidents there in the last five years.  Mr. Cahalan said Council does not have that information in 
front of them this evening.  We have consultants that have put that information together.   There 
were meetings we had where there was a lot of information put together and given to your traffic 
consultant to review.  We have a lot of files on this.  Council doesn’t have this information tonight 
and can’t respond to your questions.  You can set up a meeting with the engineer just like we did 
before.  Your corporate engineer also requested information, so they have this information also.  
The information has been supplied to you.  Mr. McIntyre said who makes the decision if the light 
goes in or not?  Who makes a decision about the money for the light?  Mr. Cahalan said Council 
makes those decisions.  We don’t have approval yet from PennDOT.  Mr. Maxfield said it’s not 
like we haven’t seen it or discussed it yet.  Mr. McIntyre said he wanted to make it clear he was 
against it.  What about a light at Meadows Road?  Mr. Cahalan said there was a whole study done 
on the Meadows Road and the Township Engineer would be glad to provide you with a copy.  
We’re still trying to get the HOP from PennDOT.  Mr. McIntyre said once that happens, what is the 
process from there?  Mr. Cahalan said there are some other legal issues that have to be taken care 
of. The Solicitor has to get involved as there are some property issues in Hellertown and the 
Township and the Engineer will work with us and put together a package.  That will come to 
Council for their consideration.  Mr. McIntyre asked what the timeframe for the light is?   Mr. 
Cahalan said he didn’t know for sure.  Mr. McIntyre said once the permit is approved, then you 
have to make a decision about the funds for the light?  Mr. Cahalan said Council has a capital fund 
and they put money aside several years ago for the traffic light.  Those monies are in the budget 
and they have been carried over.  We have to look at what all the costs and that’s what the engineer 
will look at.  Mrs. deLeon said in all fairness, when did we start this partnership?  Mr. Cahalan said 
2003.  Mrs. deLeon said prior to that, Hellertown and Lower Saucon were meeting at the Ad Hoc 
meetings.  She’s been there from day 1.  That has always been one of the agenda items, the 
congestion and the traffic on Polk Valley Road and working with Hellertown to try and come up 
with this.  This has been going on for years and years.  Mr. McIntyre said he realizes that.  He was 
a part of that also.  It was pretty clear that they were against this light.  Mr. Cahalan said we also 
provided you with other proposals for alternate entrances and exits for the McDonald’s and you did 
not support those.  Mr. McIntyre said they would not have been convenient.  Mrs. deLeon said 
there’s a lot of fast foods like Wendy’s right by the gas station and there are people in and out of 
there.  Something has to happen there.  Mr. McIntyre said it’s not busy when the school is in 
session.  You could put a camera on that property.  Mr. Kern said do you live in the Township?  
Mr. McIntyre said no, he lives in Bethlehem, but he spends a great deal of time at that store.  Mr. 
Kern said we travel around the Township and he doesn’t agree with Mr. McIntyre at all.  That is a 
dangerous intersection, morning, noon and night trying to pull out of there.  If we put this as an 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 9 of 16 

agenda item and say there’s a possibility of not putting a light there, this room would be packed.  
We are going to do it eventually.  He’s been here awhile and seen issues that bring out the crowd, 
and that would be one of the issues.  Mr. McIntyre said it’s not your decision.  Mr. Kern said it is 
their decision because they are here for the public safety. To him, that’s public safety.  Mr. 
McIntyre said you have to make decisions based on facts.  Mr. Kern said it’s not a feeling, it’s an 
experience.  He drives out there all the time and it’s not always at school hours.  He goes to the 
True Value and he has to wait a long, long time even if it’s not school hours.  It’s 412 and it’s a 
busy, busy corridor and you are trying to get out on that busy corridor.  School hours just 
exacerbate the busy, busy situation.  That is a dangerous intersection, it needs a light.  He’s sorry 
you have a business there.  It’s not going to impact it as badly as you think it is, but a light needs to 
be there.  He’s one of five Council members, and that’s how they make decisions based upon 
public safety.  This is one of the clearest issues since he’s been on Council that is a public safety 
issue.  That’s your right to disagree with him.  Mr. Horiszny said do you feel it will not help people 
get out of your store?  Mr. McIntyre said it will not.  When the light is red, it will block both 
entrances.  Mr. Horiszny said yes, but people wait for traffic lights all the time.  He would think 
that people who are trying to go left out of the store would be greatly enhanced by the fact that 
there is a light there.  Mr. McIntyre said there will be a line of cars there blocking it.  Chuck 
McIntyre said it’s nice you have an open mind about this situation, but you really do have to look 
at the stats.  If you had five accidents in five years, he’d dare say that’s not considered a high 
accident area.  Setting that aside, we go back three to four years when this started, they were 
always against this.  They didn’t understand the need for it. They think they understand what is 
motivating it.  They don’t feel it’s a good need, but the school district is probably behind this 
because of the buses.  As Jim pointed out, there’s only a period in the morning and afternoon when 
school lets out when this becomes a dangerous situation.  If and when a signal were to go in, would 
it be triggered by traffic?  If you are in a situation where there is no traffic on the road, would the 
light change?  Mr. Kocher said he doesn’t know.  He didn’t do the signal timing, but usually that’s 
how it’s done these days, so it if there’s no traffic at Polk Valley Road, it will remain green.  We 
can get that answered.  Mr. McIntyre said could that be part of a discussion and that might be the 
best compromise as what’s the point in having a signal working if there’s no traffic to make it 
work.  They always thought that was the case, but evidently, that’s not the case.  You do have a lot 
of traffic on 412.  You have the traffic stopped and maybe one car is coming out of Polk Valley 
Road, and you have 20 cars lined up for that single car.  What you are really talking about is not 
safety, but inconvenience.  It’s a matter of waiting at that intersection.  This is something that needs 
to come before this group and they would like to discuss it further.  If you can picture this, you 
have a red light and traffic blocking the entrance and the exit, you can’t get in or out, for that 
period you get a backup, and at noon or 1:00 PM, there would be a log jam at that restaurant.  We 
are simply too close to the proposed light.  The light is only about 50 feet from McDonalds.  He 
would tell you that McDonald’s has a formula for finding real estate sites and one of those is the 
closeness of the location to a stoplight.  If they were to go to them today and say there’s a light 
proposed for that site, that would be the end of that site.  Mrs. deLeon said you would also have 
problems with the Borough under today’s standards.  Mr. Maxfield said the good thing is it will 
have to be discussed at a Township meeting in the future and an opportunity will come up to 
discuss all of these issues.  It’s going to be interesting as you keep saying, our opinion, our opinion, 
but our opinion has been based on information that they’ve gotten from their engineers and 
consultants.  That same information has to go to PennDOT and be approved for that type of 
situation.  Mr. Kern said you can’t just put a light at any intersection. It has to be a justified study 
and this justified a light.  Mr. Maxfield said we already had traffic counts and footages done.  He’s 
sure all of that will come up at a public meeting.  Everybody will have an opportunity to air their 
opinion.  Mr. Horiszny said he would think that stop line doesn’t have to be in front of your 
driveway.  Mr. Maxfield said we certainly don’t want to kill the business.  If there’s a way to work 
it out, we could maybe make some allowances and mitigate everyone’s problems.  Mr. McIntyre 
said on behalf of his son, he’d like you to have lunch there one day and take a look at it and see 
what you think.  Picture a light about 50 or 60 feet beyond the exit and the impact that would have 
at high noon for that site.  This is fact.  They don’t have the facts nor does the board, but they have 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 10 of 16 

the facts as the light will impact them.  They do have to consider public safety, but they have to 
gather all the facts in that regard as well.  Mr. Maxfield said would their engineer provide the 
Township with information in advance of an advertised meeting?  Mr. McIntyre said absolutely.  
He asked when the SVP meetings take place?  Mr. Cahalan said the second Wednesday of the 
month and it rotates between Hellertown, Lower Saucon and the school district.   The next one is at 
Hellertown.  Mr. Kern said he was just expressing his strong opinion based on the information he 
has to this point.  They’ve been having these meetings once a month for three to four years 
discussing this very topic.  He is the first person to ever come before Council to say they don’t 
want a light there.  This is news to him.  Mr. McIntyre said he’d be the only business impacted 
there. 

 Ms. Joan Madzarac from Easton Road said she was at the Bethlehem meeting last night.  You got 
the memo from Mike Alkhal.  That’s a joke.  There is a cap on the light across the street from her 
and every time she goes there, she tells them that cap does not work.  It still shines into her house. 
They insist if they cap those lights, we are going to be so happy.  Well, we are not going to be 
happy as the caps do not work.  The cap sits on top of the light. There is supposed to be a barrier 
around the light, but the bulb shines up and comes right over from under the cap right into her 
house.  She gave them a speech last night.  She told them last night:  “I was really enjoying my 
retirement until you allowed this unending aggravation into my neighborhood.  I don’t know what 
your staff is looking at. They are certainly not looking at my home or maybe they don’t know 
where Lower Saucon begins. The City of Bethlehem sign on my property fools everybody.  There 
are caps on the double lights across from my bedroom.  As I have said so many times, there is no 
change.  The caps do not keep the glare from lighting up my home and entering my bedroom. At 1 
AM, if I open my drapes, it is as light as dawn.  The darker the night gets, the brighter the glare.  
When the tenants leave their porch lights on, my hall, dining room and kitchen are lit up.  When the 
snow bent my bushes, the flood light on Building I reflected on my television set in my living 
room, so as you can see, I cannot escape those offending lights.  I cannot make you hear what you 
do not want to hear and I cannot make you see what you do not want to see, but I am not going to 
give up as I am fighting for my life and well being, while Boyd Wilson is fighting to keep the 
profit.  You have to decide what is more important.  What if that project changes hands.  Let’s deal 
with this now and end the aggravation and bullying.  We spent an hour over at Bethlehem Fields 
from 9:00 PM to 10:00 PM and the lights lit up the whole front of my home.  If the front of my 
home is lit up, so is the interior.  It is just common sense.  Of course Boyd Wilson doesn’t want to 
spend money to change those lights.  They told us that on August 3, 2009, but it may become 
necessary.  Tracy Samuelson, she’s in the Planning Division, was there in August.  She saw what 
happened.  When the lights were turned off, she agreed with us.  What changed her mind?  Brett 
Ryder, he’s the electrician who saw the effect those lights had on our homes. He too suddenly 
changed his opinion.  All I can ask again is why, when the problem is still obvious.  There should 
be no light spillover on Lower Saucon properties. Building H lights were recessed over Boyd 
Wilson’s objection.  I came and thanked Mayor Callahan and Joe Kelly because it worked.  Maybe 
feelings were hurt because we are not electricians or engineers and we knew the right thing to do.  
We are not children, so let’s move on.  I’m still grateful to you for helping me but Norris Boyd 
double-crossed us all and again turned on the lights that had been turned off in August.  There must 
be a reason why everyone has turned their backs on us.  Please be honest and tell me so we can find 
someone else to help us. Someone who is not afraid of Boyd Wilson.  All we want for is for them 
to keep their lights on their own property and leave us in peace and darkness.”  She said a man 
walked in and sat behind her at the meeting.  He lives on Pine Top Trail.  He’s on the Zoning 
Board.  He was there to complain about the property he bought up there because it’s quiet and 
peaceful and it’s a restricted residential area.  We all are familiar with that area.  He said someone 
bought a home near him and made it into a senior health care center.  There are only five patients, 
but they have 24 hour care and there are 15 cars parked there along that street.  He’s there as he 
doesn’t want to pay $400 to go before Zoning, which he is a member of, so he went to City Council 
to ask them to intercede on his behalf so he doesn’t have to pay this $400.  When he sat down, 
another guy got up and said he thought that Zoning should have a $10 fee for an ordinary citizen to 
come in there and complain about what they are doing.  Why should an ordinary person have to 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 11 of 16 

pay $400 to complain about a decision that Zoning has made?  He said businesses can come in 
there and afford the $400, but an ordinary citizen can’t do it unless it was something he was going 
to construct.  When the meeting was over, she turned around and told him he’s the reason she is 
here.  Your zoning caused her problem at Bethlehem Fields.  He said he knows her problem, and he 
voted no.  The rest of the people voted for it.  He knows those buildings are up on the street and 
they should have been set back.  He said he’s not her problem; it’s the rest of the Zoning Board 
who voted yes.  She said there was Jeff Smith from Allied, who she called when she wanted the 
lights turned down and he told her to live with it.  Now you see what she’s up against.  She is going 
to ask you, if they don’t do anything, does she have to go for an injunction?  If she takes it to court 
as a civil suit, it’s going to take forever.  She’s dreading this summer as she can’t open her 
windows.  Attorney Treadwell said he can’t give legal advice, but an injunction would be lengthy 
and costly.  Ms. Madzarac said when she talked to the sheriff, he told her that would be the 
quickest way.  When she talked to the District Attorney’s office, she said that would be the 
cheapest.  Attorney Treadwell said you may have talked to the District Attorney’s office, but that 
office deals with criminal actions, which this is not a criminal action.  He doesn’t know what kind 
of advice they gave you, but the sheriff isn’t 100% familiar with the litigation issues.  They told her 
she could get an injunction to have the lights turned off which the sheriff would serve or she could 
go to civil court and sue them.  Attorney Treadwell said the injunction would be in civil court as 
well and the only involvement the sheriff would be is to take the complaint and hand it to the 
defendant.  Then the defendant, which he assumes would be the owners of the apartment complex, 
would have to present a defense to your complaint in court.  Ms. Madzarac said she doesn’t know 
what to do anymore.  Mr. Maxfield said he saw at least one of the caps on the lights, and it’s stupid.  
What is that going to do?  Ms. Madzarac said on TV they showed a scene in New York City and 
she saw one of those lights, the whole thing is a single light and it’s all blacked out on one side.  
Mr. Kern said why don’t you ask them to paint the globes black on your side.  Mr. Maxfield said he 
saw something the other day which was a very simple solution which was on a building.  They had 
a light on the one side of the building where they didn’t want it to be cast, and it was as simple 
piece of sheet metal that was cut out, bent in at the bottom and top and fit in fixture and it blocked 
everything from going in that direction.  There are simple, inexpensive solutions to this problem.  
Ms. Madzarac said they claim those light were $500 a piece and the ones she picked out were only 
$319 and it’s the same light.  If you go past the Waffle House, the lights are shielded and face 
downward, perfect.  This Boyd Wilson will not spend that money.  Mr. Maxfield said when he 
drives by there daily the lighting seems to be different every time.  It’s on and off at different times.  
Ms. Madzarac said when its snows they go on and off at different times.  Every light faces her 
property.  Her trees are going to suffer also as last year she had an apple tree and when they turned 
the lights on, all her apples fell off.  Mr. Kern said he can only think of black spray paint.   

 
VIII. COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 
 Mr. Cahalan said he wants to update you on the alternative and clean energy grant.  They 

had come to you at last meeting and Council had approved submitting the grant application 
to DEP for the alternative and clean energy program for $89,489.  They are matching that 
50%.  They are planning on using these funds to undertake energy efficient retrofits to the 
Township buildings and LED lights for our traffic signals.  Following the submission of 
the grant application, Cathy Gorman was advised by DEP that they changed the program 
from a grant to a loan disbursement program.  We still do not have all the details on that.  
He just wanted to inform you of what the change was.  He went over a document that 
Cathy prepared.  It gives you some information about the difference of what would happen 
with the loan versus the grant.  Basically we would have the same amount of money to 
spend on the energy retrofits and we anticipate that with the retrofits we would be saving 
approximately $20,000 a year going forward every year with the more efficient equipment 
installed.  The loan terms as they understand it, would be a ten year payback at 1% interest. 
The annual cost to us would be $9,500.  Saving $20,000 and paying $9,500 over a period 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 12 of 16 

of ten years is still a good deal for the Township.  We’d still be getting some return from 
that.  If we do want to move forward, we do have to come back to Council with an 
ordinance as we would be incurring increased debt for the Township, but they will get 
more details on that in the future.  On the geothermal and solar systems they are looking 
for, they are changing those from grants to loans also.  Still a very good deal for the 
Township.  He will bring that back at a future meeting and discuss it as there’s no action 
required on that. 

 Mr. Cahalan said in your packet is a request from the Saucon Valley lacrosse team.  They 
are starting to practice out at Polk Valley Park, and due to the weather conditions, all three 
fields have been closed. We are going to be opening them up this weekend.  They were out 
there checking them today.  The lacrosse team wanted to conduct practice.  Tom brought it 
to our attention that they had used the parking lot for practice last year which is a common 
type of thing they do when there’s inclement weather.  He asked them to provide a diagram 
of how they would utilize the parking lot.  He had that reviewed by the Director of Public 
Works, Chief of Police and Zoning Officer.  They sent the lacrosse team some conditions 
on using the parking lot.  A couple of those conditions were that if park visitors parked 
near the practice, there was concern that lacrosse balls could hit the parked cars.  We asked 
that parent monitors insure that park visitors park far enough away from the flying balls.  
We also asked that they post some sort of notice or sign to the entrance of the park 
indicating the upper parking lot is being used for practice.  Also, that they are responsible 
for putting up and taking down any cones and tape they put up.  They are to make sure the 
pathway that runs alongside the bulletin board and the port-a-johns is kept open so visitors 
can get around the practice session to access the park pathways and they should clean up 
the parking lot after use.  They were fine with that.  Based on that, he gave them approval.  
They were up there Monday night and probably tonight and will be up there Wednesday 
and Thursday until the fields are opened up.  Once the fields are opened, they do not use 
the parking lot. It’s usually in March and April when it showers.  Mr. Horiszny said tonight 
the practice field was out in front of the garage by our fuel tanks.  Mr. Cahalan said what 
sport?  Mr. Horiszny said lacrosse.  Mr. Cahalan said he did not know that but he will 
follow up on that.  They will ask them for the same information and review it like this 
request.   

 Mr. Cahalan said the LVPC has asked the Township to appoint a representative to the 
Saucon Creek Watershed Plan Advisory Committee.  There was a letter that came in.  They 
are getting ready to have meetings. This is to update the Saucon Creek Watershed plan per 
Act 167.  Since that watershed is in our township, they are asking for a representative.  Mr. 
Horiszny said was this what he was appointed to?  Mr. Cahalan said he thinks this is 
different.  Mr. Maxfield said should we send Brien or Kevin?  Mr. Cahalan said it just says 
send a representative from the municipality.  It could be a staff member.  Mrs. deLeon said 
maybe it should be a technical person.  Would they object if a Council person also went?  
We know a lot of things about the Township, but we are not consultants.  Mr. Maxfield 
said could we make that a motion to send Brien or Dan to these meetings?  Mr. Kocher 
said they are doing this to all the municipalities.  Mr. Maxfield said they asked for a 
representative from the watershed association and Keri is not an engineer.  This for LVPC.  
Mr. Maxfield said Mrs. deLeon’s suggestion about sending a Council person isn’t a bad 
idea and since Ron is the liaison to LVPC, generally, if he can make those meetings, he 
should go.  Mr. Horiszny said he could go. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval to send appropriate staff to this meeting. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 

 Mr. Cahalan said there was an article in the PSATS magazine about the web soil survey 
that is available from the USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service.  Ron asked 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 13 of 16 

about using that in lieu of the Northampton County Soil Survey.  Chris talked to Brien and 
Kevin regarding that because our Zoning Ordinance refers to the Northampton County Soil 
Survey.  They both said the Northampton County Soil Survey is the one accepted in our 
area and is utilized by the Conservation District as well as the DEP regs with regard to 
sewage planning, etc.  The one that’s on line for whatever reason uses a completely 
different nomenclature, it doesn’t jive with the Northampton County one.  That is accurate 
because the soils don’t change over time.  The feeling was we didn’t want to go through a 
whole change in the ordinance.   The Northampton County one serves the purpose.  Mr. 
Maxfield said we refer to the soil survey for creeks and sometimes waterways. The more 
generalized soil survey might miss a lot of the small tributaries and might even miss more.  
We probably have the opportunity with GIS to add some of those tributaries while we may 
not be able to do that with the USDA site.   

 Mr. Cahalan said we took a shot at putting together a first draft of a Special Events Policy.  
This would be for those events on the Township property, particularly the parks and the 
historical sites.  It’s a little bit different than reserving a field for soccer or lacrosse or 
reserving a pavilion for a picnic.  This would be something similar to what lacrosse asked 
about with the LAX day with tents being set up.  This is the first shot.  We put it together 
to give you something to look at.  It really encompasses everything from soup to nuts as far 
as what would have to be done.  It covers all the bases. At the end of the document, he 
attached some guidelines for special events and this would be focused on events at the Lutz 
Franklin Schoolhouse and Heller Homestead.  This came from the National Trust for 
Historic Places.  It runs down a very informative list of issues that they deal with for events 
on historic properties.  This will go through the park and recreation board and they will 
discuss it with the staff and consultants and everyone will have input and it may change 
when it comes back for your consideration. He would like Council’s approval to send this 
to the Saucon Valley Conservancy and the Lower Saucon Township Historical Society and 
ask them to review it and make comments and recommendations so that we can bring all 
that back here and put together a good special events policy.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval to send this to the Saucon Valley Conservancy and the 

Lower Saucon Township Historical Society and ask them to review it and make comments and 
recommendations so that Mr. Cahalan can bring it back here and put together a good special 
events policy.   

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 
 

 Mr. Cahalan said as an FYI, the Historical Society did mention to him that they received an 
inquiry from an individual who has the last name of Lutz, and he inquired about having a 
wedding at the schoolhouse in the Fall.  They are getting those types of requests.  Mrs. 
deLeon said they received those requests over the years also and always refrained from 
doing it because they weren’t really sure.  Mr. Maxfield said didn’t we say no last time?  
Mr. Cahalan said he doesn’t know if there was a discussion and if it was after the filming 
thing and there was a request for a wedding.  This would give us something to base it on.  
Council would then have a policy to make those decisions.  Mr. Kern said when they 
request a wedding at the Lutz-Franklin Schoolhouse do they want access inside the 
building as well?  Mr. Cahalan said he believes so.  Mr. Maxfield said that was part of the 
problem.  He was reading through the policy and there may be a couple of things to 
consider.  One was he really didn’t see any mention of fireworks in there and he saw that 
there is something about a section on noise levels and displays.  It’s probably something 
you want to address.  Mr. Cahalan said he actually dropped out the mention of fireworks as 
we don’t permit it, but he can put it back in there.  It would be under the Fire Marshall 
where they review the use of open flames, cooking facilities, that type of thing.  Mr. 
Maxfield said there are two other issues, he notices when they have special events at a 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 14 of 16 

place, there is often some type of transportation used, especially when there is multiple 
centers, you might have someone in a golf cart or something like that, so we’d probably 
want to look at that type of situation also.  Mr. Cahalan said we did say if parking was not 
available at the event site, the event organizers will be responsible for a plan to transport or 
shuttle participants from an offsite area to the event.  Mr. Maxfield said in the section 
about temporary lighting, we probably need to really get a handle on what types of lights 
and wattages we allow because that was one of the things we promised the neighbors at 
Polk Valley Park that there would be no lighting. We may want to consider day events 
only.  Mrs. deLeon said these things only apply if we rent it out.  We’re still okay doing 
what we do.  Mr. Cahalan said yes, that would be under the lease.  Mrs. deLeon said this 
really isn’t contrasting with the lease then.  Mr. Cahalan said it’s mostly for the outdoors 
except for the historic sites if they ask to go inside and then that’s why we have all those 
guidelines.  Mrs. deLeon said at the schoolhouse, we are going to have issues with the new 
park, but yet they will be doing things on their site.  At the Homestead, there’s things going 
on also on the two acre site.  Mr. Cahalan said when this comes back, we’ll have the permit 
application with the draft and some information about recommended fees which is a little 
bit higher than just reserving a pavilion depending on the event.  Mrs. deLeon said would 
you be able to provide this in an email documents so we can circulate it?  Mr. Cahalan said 
yes. 
 

B. COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL 
 

Kimberly Kelly – Absent 
 

Mr. Maxfield  
 He said he wants to thank the Township for hosting the NRI workshop.  We had in excess 

of 60 people.  It was really nice and a good event.  Thanks for your support on that. 
 He said this Saturday, the Saucon Creek Watershed Association will be at the Green 

Building Expo at Northampton Community College gymnasium.  We will be building rain 
barrels from noon to 3 PM.  Please stop out if you’d like.   

 He said Ron just reminded him and he has a big iron ring that he pulled off of Meadows 
Road from one of the authority’s manholes and it must have popped out from the flood.  
He has it, but forgot to bring it along.  Please tell Gar Davidson.  It’s from Mill Run and 
Meadows Road. 
 

 Mrs. Yerger – Absent 
 

 Mr. Horiszny 
 He said on the NRI thing, there was an indication we might want to keep alert for deer 

management ordinances.   
 He said the Lower Saucon Authority board last night approved the document from 

Hellertown regarding test borings for the Leithsville extension of the sewer line.  
  He did a conservation easement monitoring trip with three people from Wildlands at the 

Old Mill sanctuary the other day. 
 

Mr. Kern – No report 
 

Mrs. deLeon 
 She said she also attended the NRI workshop and it was very good.  There were a lot of 

people there and it was great. 
 She attended the Hellertown-Lower Saucon Chamber dinner with Jack on Saturday night.  

They honored the Matey-Medei agency and Stephen Prager and it was very, very nice.  
Stephen made an off the cuff speech and he was wonderful.  He has a good future ahead of 
him.  He was very happy and his parents were very proud. 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 15 of 16 

 She said they got something from the landfill with a notice of violation with the tank.  Can 
someone tell her anything else about it?  Mr. Cahalan said it’s in the memo that Leslie did. 
Sam Donato came in and spoke with us and said they had a tank there for years and after 
they moved it they were advised that it needed to be certified and other work had to be 
done and they were working with DEP to get that paperwork.  The next thing they knew, 
they got a notice of violation.  Mrs. deLeon said what do they use this ethylene glycol for?  
Mr. Cahalan said probably for some machinery up there.  Mr. Horiszny said it could be a 
lubricant too.  Mrs. deLeon said they moved it on the other side of the building.  Mr. 
Cahalan said when the maintenance garage moved, they had to move that to another 
location.  That’s when the installer said you have to have certain paperwork and they went 
out to get that, and they were communicating with DEP, and out of the blue they got a 
notice of violation which they are not happy about.  Mr. Horiszny said that’s antifreeze.  
Mr. Kern said it’s propylene glycol but with alcohol.   

 She said they talked about the minor permit modification that was about six inches thick.  
They are meeting on March 31st to look at permit modification.  It will probably be back on 
the agenda the next week. 

 She said on the gaming, there was much discussion at their Partnership meeting last week 
and on the agenda for Monday will be discussion of a draft application.  They’ve created 
one so that way everybody will have the same format and just fill in the blanks.  It will be 
easier.  The Solicitor also provided his written responses which were forwarded to 
everybody.  Basically, we could have done what we wanted to, but no one saw it that way.  
Maybe in the future, it will change.  It will be interesting to see as these applications come 
in and they are also going to be discussing dates throughout the year.   

 She said Community Day is coming up.  At the Chamber meeting last night, they talked 
about having the Township post the registration form on line for the booths so it would be a 
little bit more accessible and create awareness.  Most people don’t realize that Community 
Day is sponsored by the Chamber, so we really need to promote that a little bit more. 
 

D. SOLICITOR – No report 
 

E. ENGINEER – No report 
 

F. PLANNER – No report 
 

III. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 
  

A. RESOLUTION #40-2010 – COMMENDING HEATHER LOGAN FOR ACHIEVING THE 
GIRL SCOUT GOLD AWARD 
 
Mr. Kern said Resolution #40-2010 has been prepared commending Heather Logan for her 
achievements in receiving the Girl Scout Gold Award, the highest honor in Girl Scouting. 
 

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING HEATHER LOGAN FOR RECEIVING THE  
GIRL SCOUT GOLD AWARD 

 
WHEREAS, Heather Logan has been a member of the Girl Scouts Troop #8480 for the past 
thirteen (13) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Heather earned numerous badges and awards with the Girl Scouts including the Girl 
Scout Bronze and Silver Awards; and 
 
WHEREAS, Heather earned a varsity letter in field hockey at Saucon Valley High School, where 
she was inducted into the National Honor Society and participated in extra-curricular activities 



General Business Meeting 
March 17, 2010 
 

Page 16 of 16 

such the Ski Club, Girls on the Run of the Lehigh Valley, stage crew and Scholastic Scrimmage; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Heather also found time to serve as a mentor to elementary school students and was 
a National Honor Society Tutoring Center advisor; and 
 
WHEREAS, Heather’s project for the Gold Award was creating and organizing a Transitional 
Writing Workshop for eleven (11) Middle School fifth-graders that ran for five (5) weeks and 
addressed all the proper steps to research, write and format a Modern Languages Association 
(MLA) style paper; and 
 
WHEREAS, for her efforts Heather has earned the Girl Scout Gold Award, the highest girl honor 
in Girl Scouting. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of Lower Saucon Township, Glenn 
Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Council Member; Sandra 
Yerger, Council Member; and Ronald Horiszny, Council Member; wishes to recognize and 
commend Heather Logan for receiving her Girl Scout Gold Award.  
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of Resolution #40-2010. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger – Absent) 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:39 PM. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 
ROLL CALL: 5-0 
  
Submitted by: 
 
 
___________________________________   __________________________________ 
Jack Cahalan       Glenn Kern     
Township Manager      President of Council 


